# Coventry City Council Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for City Services held at 1.30 pm on Monday, 15 November 2021

Present:

Members: Councillor P Hetherton (Cabinet Member)

Councillor G Lloyd (Deputy Cabinet Member)
Councillor M Heaven (Shadow Cabinet Member)

Other Members: Councillor J Blundell

Employees (by Service):

Law and Governance L Knight, R Parkes, M Salmon

Transportation and Highways C Archer, R Goodyer, J Logue

Apologies: Councillor L Bigham

#### **Public Business**

### 38. **Declarations of Interests**

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests.

### 39. Objections to Proposed Waiting Restrictions (Variation 10) Report 2 (of 3)

Further to minute 35/21, the Cabinet Member for City Services considered a report of the Director of Transportation and Highways concerning objections that had been received to a Traffic Regulation Order advertised on 10th June, 2021 relating to proposed new waiting restrictions and amendments to existing waiting restrictions in Wards across the City. The Order consisted of over 100 proposals, some proposals relating to multiple locations.

123 objections were received, which related to 40 proposals. Two petitions in opposition were also received. In addition, there were 17 responses in support of proposals and five comments. In accordance with the City Council's procedure for dealing with objections to TROs, they were reported to the Cabinet Member for City Services for a decision as to how to proceed.

The objections to be considered at this meeting related to proposals in the Cheylesmore, Wainbody, Westwood, Whoberley and Woodlands Wards. A summary of the proposed restrictions, objections and responses were set out in an appendix to the report. All the respondents were invited to the meeting and one objector attended.

The Cabinet Member was informed that over 60 of the proposals received no objections, the responses received were either in support or comments about the proposal.

The report highlighted that many of the locations where changes were proposed had been identified from requests for new or changes to existing waiting restrictions. These requests had been received from a number of sources, including the public, for example due to safety concerns relating to parked vehicles and issues due to overnight lorry parking.

One objector attended the meeting in respect of the proposals for Ivy Farm Lane and Cannocks Lane. The objector highlighted that the location was in a conservation area and installing yellow lines would be unsightly. He indicated that the consultation with residents had taken place sometime ago and since then things had changed and there were now no parking issues and the restrictions were unnecessary. Councillor J Blundell, a Wainbody Ward Councillor, attended the meeting and, together with the Shadow Cabinet Member for City Services, Councillor Heaven, also a Wainbody Ward Councillor, concurred with the objector's comments. The Cabinet Member decided that the restrictions should not installed, monitoring be carried out and that a further consultation be undertaken if necessary. She acknowledged that if parking occurred whilst there were no restrictions, the Police had the necessary powers to undertake enforcement action if they considered the parking was dangerous or causing an obstruction.

Councillor Blundell and Councillor Heaven also spoke in support of residents' objections in respect of the proposals for Lilacvale Way. They highlighted that for safety, parents did need to park whilst dropping off and picking up children for Cannon Park School. The Cabinet Member decided that the waiting restrictions in Lilacvale Way are not installed, the location be removed from the Order and that further consultation be undertaken.

The cost of introducing the proposed TROs, if approved, would be funded from the Highways Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.

RESOLVED that, having considered the objections to the proposed waiting restrictions, the Cabinet Member for City Services:

- 1) Approves the implementation of the restrictions as advertised in the Allesley Hall Drive Area, Cecily Road/Eltham Road, Goldthorn Close /Farncroft Avenue, Lawley Close, Packwood Green / Wolverton Road, Station Avenue.
- 2) Approves that the restrictions proposed for Ivy Farm Lane and Cannocks Lane are not installed, monitoring to be carried out and further consultation undertaken if necessary.
- 3) Approves that the restrictions are not installed on Standard Avenue. Continue to monitor, and if future road safety or obstruction concerns, due to parked vehicles, are raised, consider the installation of double yellow lines (subject to the necessary legal process).

- 4) Approves the installation of a reduced extent of double yellow lines on Unicorn Lane as detailed in Appendix A to the report.
- 5) Approves that the proposed waiting restrictions for Lilacvale Way are not installed, the location be removed from the Order and that further consultation be undertaken.
- 6) Approval be given that those parts of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order referred to in the report and that the recommendations above are made operational.

# 40. 2021/22 Local Safety Scheme Programme - Average Speed Enforcement Scheme, Stoney Stanton Road

The Cabinet Member for City Services considered a report of the Director of Transportation and Highways that sought approval for the implementation of an Average Speed Enforcement (ASE) Scheme on Stoney Stanton Road from its junction with the A444 to its junction with Harnall Lane East. An Appendix to the report provided a location plan of the proposed Scheme.

Coventry City Council received many requests for road safety measures from residents and Elected Members across the city, concerned about inappropriate vehicular speed. This included a significant number of petitions requesting road safety measures to address these concerns.

Speeding vehicles continued to be a significant contributory factor in recorded personal injury collisions in Coventry. Although the overall collision rates were declining on Coventry's road network, the number of people killed or seriously injured (KSI) remained high on major routes that carried high volumes of traffic.

In March 2018, Cabinet approved (their minute 138/17 referred) the use of ASE on London Road and Ansty Road, and both ASE projects were introduced in January 2019. As a result of positive initial results in terms of speed reduction, and personal injury collision reduction, Henley Road, Binley Road, London Road extension and Ansty Road extension ASE schemes were approved in March 2019 (their minute 96/18 referred) and were now operational.

In June 2020, following the early positive safety results of the existing schemes, the Cabinet Member for City Services approved (Minute 4/20 referred) four additional ASE schemes including Longford Road, Bell Green Road, Burnaby Road and Sky Blue Way. In December 2020, the Sky Blue Way ASE scheme was delayed due to technical difficulties with the location, and the Foleshill Road Scheme was approved in its place (Minute 24/20 referred). This scheme had been operational since June 2021.

It was now also proposed, as part of the 2021/22 Local Safety Scheme Programme, to introduce a further ASE scheme on Stoney Stanton Road; following consideration of the high number of accidents on Stoney Stanton Road related to speeding vehicles.

The installation of the Stoney Stanton Road ASE Scheme would be funded from the Highways Maintenance and Investment Capital Programme budget through the Local Transport Plan.

### **RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member for City Services:**

- 1) Approves the implementation of an ASE Scheme on Stoney Stanton Road from its junction with the A444 to its junction with Harnall Lane East.
- 2) Approves that the associated procurement process for ASE equipment be undertaken and that approval is given to collaborate with partner organisations (West Midlands Police and other West Midlands Local Authorities).

### 41. Outstanding Issues

There were no outstanding issues.

## 42. Any other items of Public Business

There were no other items of public business.

(Meeting closed at 3.00 pm)